ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COVM TTEE
February 11, 2013
8:00 a. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senat or Bert Stednan

Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Berta Gardner

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representati ve Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representati ve Dan Saddl er
Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harriet Drunmond

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
Al'l nmenbers present

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Representati ve Peggy W/ son

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI O\t ALASKA NATIVE SCIENCE & ENG NEERING PROGRAM
( ANSEP)

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -1- February 11, 2013



W TNESS REG STER

DR. HERB (I LLI SAURRI) SCHRCEDER, Vice Provost and

Prof essor of Engi neering

Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program

Uni versity of Al aska- Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the Alaska Native
Sci ence & Engi neering Program

M CHAEL BOURDUKOFSKY, Chief QOperations Oficer

Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program

Uni versity of Al aska- Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of the Alaska Native
Sci ence & Engi neering Program

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8: 00: 58 AM

CO CHAI R GARY STEVENS called the joint nmeeting of the Senate and
House Education Standing Commttees to order at 8:00 a.m
Present at the call to order were Senators Dunleavy, Stednan,
Huggi ns, Gardner, and Co-Chair Stevens.

CO- CHAIR LYNN GATTIS announced that Representatives Reinbold,
LeDoux, Saddler, Seaton, Drummond, and Co-Chair Gattis were
present at the call to order.

PRESENTATI ON: Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program
ANSEP

CHAI R STEVENS announced t he busi ness before the commttee woul d
be a presentation by nenbers of the University of Al aska-
Anchor age Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program

8:01: 08 AM

DR. HERB (ILLISAURRI) SCHROEDER, Vice Provost, Professor of
Engi neeri ng, Al aska Native Science & Engineering Program
(ANSEP), University of Al aska-Anchorage, related that Al aska was
in the mdst of an education crisis in that 40 percent of Al aska
Native students did not finish high school on time. Only 4
percent of mnority students nationw de cone to coll ege prepared
for science and engineering. O ganizations were concerned about
finding the talent they required to stay conpetitive. Mthers
and fathers were concerned for the future of their children.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 2- February 11, 2013



Funders were concerned by the l|ack of progress despite huge
i nvestnments spanning decades. K-12 students were eager and
bright, but were often denied the inspiration, guidance, and
opportunity that |ed to success. College students were not
graduating in the nunbers necessary to neet the demands in
sci ence and engi neeri ng.

DR. SCHRCEDER rel ated that ANSEP reached only 3 percent of K-12
Native students, so 97 percent were unable to participate. He
said they were convinced that there was enough noney in the
system to acconplish goals for many nore students. The noney in
the system was not always spent in a nanner that |led to success;
it was paying for failure.

8:02: 56 AM

DR.  SCHRCEDER maintained that the system as denying students
access to education and econom c opportunities. People had been
working hard to solve the problem for 40 years with little
i nprovenent. ANSEP takes education back to the basics, raised
the bar, and focused on preparing students academcally and
socially with the tools they require for success in college and
beyond.

He said ANSEP begins in mddle school and offered a string of
I i nked components that continued through high school and into
col |l ege, graduate school, and the professions. In 1995  ANSEP
began with one student. Today, there were 1,000 m ddl e school
hi gh school, wuniversity students, and alummi, successful at
every |level.

He related that ANSEP m ddl e school students conpl eted Al gebra I
before graduating from 8th grade at a rate of 83 percent. The
nati onal average was 26 percent. Mre than half of ANSEP high
school students graduated engineering-ready and only 4 percent
of mnority students nationwide do so. Mre than 70 percent of
al | ANSEP students who began B.S. degrees graduated.

8:04: 39 AM

DR. SCHROEDER sai d over the course of the next five years, ANSEP
intended to expand opportunities that fostered success. First,
ANSEP woul d work with policy makers so that noney flowed only to
those science and engineering progranms that denonstrat ed
successful academ ¢ outconmes. Secondly, ANSEP would work wth
districts to weave ANSEP conponents into the fabric of the K-12
system usi ng existing K-12 fundi ng.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 3- February 11, 2013



DR. SCHRCEDER stressed the inportance of paying for success

Success neant that students were socially and acadenmically
prepared for college and confident and ready to accept the
challenge of building a better Al aska and a better nation. He
said ANSEFP' s objective was to build mddle school academes in
twelve districts by 2018. In 2020, the mddle school conponent
would reach a steady state with an excess of 600 students
graduating from 8th grade annually. There would be nore than
3,000 ANSEP students on track to conplete science and
engi neering bachel or degrees and in 2022, there would be 4,000
students.

8:06: 15 AM

DR. SCHROEDER spoke of expansion to additional districts due to
shifting funds from activities that did not produce desired
academc results. Every student enrolled in ANSEP had the
opportunity to earn the Al aska Perfornmance Schol arshi p.

DR. SCHROEDER showed a video about the number of students
currently enrolled in ANSEP

8:08: 15 AM

M CHAEL BOURDUKCOFSKY, Chief Operations Oficer, Al aska Native
Science & Engineering Program University of Al aska-Anchorage,
expl ai ned that ANSEP had the support of over 70 organizations
and industry partners who have provided over $35 nillion in
program and facility support. He showed a picture of the ANSEP
bui I di ng on the Anchorage canpus.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY returned to the video to show i nformati on about
the Al aska Performance Scholarship. He noted that the videos
were avail able on the ANSEP website.

8:10: 59 AM

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY expl ained ANSEP programmatic conmponents which
involved lineal connections from the tinme students entered the
system until they graduated and worked in the professional
wor | d.

8:12:12 AM

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY reported that ANSEP began in the m ddle school.
One of the mpjor activities was to build conputers. In order for
students to keep their conmputers they had to conplete Al gebra I
before they conpleted eighth grade. They do so at a rate of 83
per cent .

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -4- February 11, 2013



MR. BOURDUKOFSKY continued with the video in order to explain
the ANSEP Pre-Coll ege Mddle School Acadeny. He gave exanpl es of
hands-on activities students participate in for science and
mat h.

8:.14.: 20 AM

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY described the ANSEP high school conputer
assenbly program The students nust conplete chem stry, physics,
bi ol ogy, and trigononetry in order to keep their conputers. He
showed the video on ANSEP hi gh school conputer assenbly. Over 50
percent of the students were able to keep their conmputers.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY addressed a graph on the Indigenous Alliance
for Engineering & Science Education; wuniversities outside of
Al aska. He spoke of the success of the program

8. 16: 54 AM

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY reported on the ANSEP Pre-Coll ege Acceleration
Acadeny offered to high school students who have conpleted a
conputer. He spoke of the advantages of the program for students
fromrural areas in their ability to successfully transition to
a university setting. He showed the video on ANSEP Pre-College
Accel eration Acadeny.

8:19:11 AM

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY explained the ANSEP Summer Bridge which
involved a math class and an internship in a science or
engi neering field.

DR. SCHROEDER expl ained the process was just the beginning. A
student could begin college with their math classes already
conpl et ed.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY showed t he video on ANSEP Summer Bri dge.

8:21:36 AM

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY described the ANSEP University Study Success
Group; a support system that hel ped students to be engaged and
successful. It involved a weekly study group and opportunities
to hear about internships and jobs.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY related graduate studies opportunities, which
i ncl uded financial support.

He stressed the inportance of the sense of comunity and the

connection of the program from m ddle school all the way through
graduat e school and beyond.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 5- February 11, 2013



8:24: 06 AM
CHAIR STEVENS thanked the presenters and commented on the
excel | ence of the ANSEP program

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX agreed it was an excellent program She
asked if non-Native students could participate in the programif
they live in a rural comunity.

DR. SCHRCEDER answered yes. He said no one was ever excluded
f r om ANSEP.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if anyone could participate or if
there is a selection process.

DR. SCHROEDER answered that the very best students were sel ected
based on attendance and grades.

8:25:54 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked about the difference between ANSEP
and the regul ar engineering curricul um

DR. SCHRCEDER answered that ANSEP students take the regular
engi neering classes and received support from ANSEP in the form
of study groups that |learn howto work in teans.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if ANSEP students were integrated
into the regul ar program

DR. SCHRCEDER answered yes. He noted that ANSEP worked to nake
sure that their students were prepared for college before they
entered college. He recalled a tine when Native students were
not prepared for coll ege.

8:29: 02 AM
CO- CHAI R STEVENS asked M. Bourdukofsky how ANSEP assisted him
in his educational journey.

MR, BOURDUKOFSKY answered that he nmet up with ANSEP in coll ege
He described the support and internship provided by ANSEP. He
stressed that ANSEP brought the industry to the students.

8:32: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked about Dr. Schroeder's comrent
about "spending noney in failure.” She conplinmented him on the
program s success and nunber of partnerships and the students’
ent husi asm for the program

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 6- February 11, 2013



DR. SCHRCEDER replied that it had taken ANSEP 18 years to
achieve its | evel of success.

8:34:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that he served on the Task Force
on Education which required an advisor/advocate program for any
school that participated in the Al aska Performance Schol arship
(APS) . He comented that ANSEP was the pinnacle of an
advi sor/advocate program He asked how districts identified
prograns that were not working in order to shift dollars to
prograns that worked.

DR. SCHRCEDER enphasized that it does not work at the district
|l evel. He described the curriculum that nust be conpleted by
hi gh school graduation in order for a programto be successful.

8:36:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that APS sets high curriculum
requi renents. He asked if shifting noney from prograns that do
not work could be acconplished on a state |evel.

DR. SCHRCEDER replied that soneone needs to be enpowered in the
Comm ssioner's office in order to allow high school credits for
coll ege course work so that students could qualify for the APS
He explained that currently the process was decided on a
district level and noted that it had taken him over a year to
get the Anchorage School District to consider the issue.

8:39: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the legislature should require
districts to allow those credits to be accepted at the high
school |evel.

DR. SCHRCEDER answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what the cost was per student for
ANSEP and what elenments of the program were unique to Al aska
Nat i ves.

DR. SCHROEDER answered that the program was not Native-specific
and was available to all students. The nmgjority of students cane
from rural Alaska. He explained that the <cost varied at
different levels. In mddle school, for 1,000 students, it costs
$4 mllion annually. He said 18 percent of that anmount canme from
the wuniversity system and another 18 percent cane from the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent. He stated that

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -7 February 11, 2013



the rest cane from state and federal agencies, philanthropic
or gani zati ons, corporations, and private individuals.

He noted that ANSEP could expand to 18 districts by 2018 for
less than $2.5 million in additional funding.

8:41: 53 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how many districts were currently
served.

DR. SCHROEDER responded that there were currently 12 districts.
He said the program expanded by 54 students at a tine.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if wurban school districts would be
i ncl uded.

DR. SCHROEDER answered that the WMat-Su Borough School D strict
woul d be the next school .

8:.43: 46 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what ANSEP' s 83 percent success rate
was conpared to.

DR. SCHRCEDER replied it was conpared to the nationw de rate of
26 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted that ANSEP chose "the best of the
best." She asked if +those students could be conpared wth
simlar students nati onw de.

DR. SCHROEDER responded that he had not conpared those ANSEP
statistics to national statistics. He noted that sonme have
criticized the program for choosing the best. He defended that
idea by stated it was the way to create a system c change.

8:46: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVWWOND shared the difficulty of increasing the
nunber of nmath credit requirenents in the Anchorage School
District in 1994.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked what the result would be if nore nopney
was spent on the education system

DR. SCHRCEDER said, "You would continue to pay for failure.™

SENATOR GARDNER addressed the positive inmpact of the APS and
ANSEP on students in recognizing that students from their own

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 8- February 11, 2013



comunities are able to go to college. She asked if ANSEP woul d
be targeting sixth grade students if they had the resources to
do so.

DR. SCHROEDER answered that ANSEP could focus on children as
early as sixth grade or even earlier. He noted the difficulty of
selling the idea of producing future enployees to conpani es when
students are only eleven years old. He noted that ExxonMobil
provided the initial funding to get ANSEP start ed.

8:50:18 AM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if the professors were certificated
t eachers.

DR. SCHROEDER replied that all students are taught by university
facul ty.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY agr eed.
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if they hold K-12 certificates.
DR. SCHRCEDER answer ed no; they teach university courses.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY said the mddle school students participate in
hands-on projects |led by industry professionals.

DR. SCHRCEDER said the Bill and Mlinda Gates Foundation gave
ANSEP funding, along wth the Rasnussen Foundation, for a

project in Bethel for students from 21 villages for an
accel eration acadeny. Students were sel ected based on grades and
readi ness for Algebra |, however, it was discovered that sone

students could not even nultiply. He noted that ANSEP was novi ng
in the direction of testing in order to assess math ability.

8:53: 23 AM
CO-CHAIR GATTIS asked if there were certificated teachers in K-
12 and niddl e schools who teach math.

DR. SCHROEDER expl ai ned that m ddl e school academ es were 12-day
progranms where "inspirational activities" were taught by
i ndustry staff. Students build conputers which they were able to
keep if they passed Al gebra I

COCHAIR GATTIS requested clarification about <certificated
t eachers.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -9- February 11, 2013



DR. SCHROEDER explained that all courses taken on the ANSEP
canpus resulted in college credit and wuniversity professors
taught those courses.

COCHAIR GATTIS asked what t he di fference was bet ween
certificated and non-certificated teachers. She asked if ANSEP
teachers were qualified to teach

DR. SCHROEDER expl ai ned that alnost all ANSEP teachers had PhD s
in their content area.

8:55: 29 AM
COCHAIR GATTIS stated that students received college credit,
but not high school credit.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY said the students had to apply for high schoo
credit at their individual districts. The problem was credit was
based on contact hours at the high school |evel.

DR. SCHRCEDER added that progress was being nmade in that area.

CO CHAIR GATTIS inquired if the certified teacher versus college
prof essor issue had bearing on the issuance of credit.

DR. SCHRCEDER answered no. He assuned a certified teacher would
al so be qualified to teach the cl ass.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to page 2 of Dr. Schroeder's
handout, which he described as the "call to action.”™ He inquired
who m ght be resistant to that goal

DR. SCHRCEDER replied that districts with their own prograns
were very defensive.

8:57:55 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if there had been any criticism of
ANSEP

DR. SCHROEDER replied that he had been harassed by the system
and others. He said he counters that by focusing on the
opportunity for students that ANSEP provi ded.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what | egislative changes might be
made.

DR. SCHROEDER sai d he does not have the answer to that question.
He suggested that educational prograns nust be |ongitudinal. He

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 10- February 11, 2013



shared a personal story about his path toward an engineering
degree, stressing that there nmust be an incentive.

9: 00: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said the legislature could not mcro-
manage education and it nust |ook at structural changes to the
system

DR. SCHROEDER agreed. He reiterated the inportance of building
| ongi t udi nal prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX requested nore information.

DR. SCHRCEDER expl ai ned that |ongitudinal prograns were prograns
t hat connect ed.

9:02: 25 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired if those ideas could apply to
students who were not the brightest.

DR. SCHRCEDER replied yes. He explained the inportance of peer
power .

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the ANSEP concept could work for
non- engi neeri ng students.

DR. SCHROEDER said yes. He nmintained that nore math and science
was good for all students.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the ANSEP concept nust be math
and sci ence based.

DR. SCHROEDER explained that the focus was on the areas where
there were | obs.

9:04: 37 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the MAT-SU program called M ddle-
Col | ege was connected wi th ANSEP

DR. SCHROEDER replied that Mddle-College was an excellent
program but was not associated with ANSEP. He nmintained that
the last two years of high school were unnecessary and students
could begin to take college classes. He noted the Junp-Start
project offered that option.

9:06:19 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -11- February 11, 2013



SENATOR HUGA NS said Dr. Schroeder's program represented the
"adj unct pieces" of education, sonething that supplenented the
syst em

DR. SCHRCEDER stated that change was needed and ANSEP was doi ng
one small piece that was a possibility for a nodel for others to
foll ow.

CO CHAI R STEVENS suspected that in ten years success would be
measured, not just by how nmany engi neers were produced, but by
how many | eaders were produced in various fields.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if ANSEP partnered at |ocal |evels
and shared fundi ng.

DR. SCHROEDER replied that there were partner opportunities and
Mat - Su School District was an exanple, as was Bethel School
District which was funded by grant noney.

9: 09: 09 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked who would take over when Dr.
Schr oeder retired.

DR. SCHROEDER said he would never retire because ANSEP was so
inmportant to him He described the endowrent plan in place and
t he student advocate faculty position. He described two students
who were finishing their PhD. engineering degrees and returning
to becone School of Engineering faculty. He noted that M ke
Bour dukof sky played a big role in the future of the program He
added that ANSEP was run by six individuals, three of which
managed t he funds.

CO CHAI R STEVENS t hanked the presenters.
9:11: 59 AM
There being no further business to come before the commttees,

Co-Chair Stevens adjourned the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Education Standing Commttees at 9:11 a.m

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -12- February 11, 2013



